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[START RECORDING] 1 

FEMALE VOICE 1:  --but you know that.  - - . 2 

MALE VOICE 1:  Sure. 3 

FEMALE VOICE 1:  But, yeah, I worked with - 4 

- . 5 

MALE VOICE 1:  - - . 6 

FEMALE VOICE 1:  Because we had -- it was 7 

crazy what we were doing. 8 

[Crosstalk] 9 

MS. MELISSA HARRIS:  Good evening, everyone.   10 

[Crosstalk] 11 

MS. HARRIS:  My name is Melissa Harris, and 12 

I will be acting as the facilitator for 13 

tonight's joint public hearing.   14 

This is the joint public hearing of the 15 

Department of Education and Community Education 16 

Council - - and - - leadership teams - - closure 17 

of M.S. 45-S.T.A.R.S. Prep Academy, and the - - 18 

to expand the - - Academy leadership charter - -19 

 . 20 

Tonight's proceedings will be recorded and 21 

transcribed.   22 

Before we begin the hearing, we ask that 23 

anyone who wishes to speak during the public 24 

comment portion of this evening's agenda sign up 25 



 3 

at the table outside of the auditorium.  Sign 1 

up will end at 6:15.   2 

If you have a question - - you would like to 3 

be addressed during the question and answer 4 

portion of the agenda, please write that 5 

question on an index card, which is also 6 

provided outside of the auditorium, and submit 7 

those to a volunteer by the table.  Only people 8 

who have signed up - - will be able to 9 

participate in public comment.  All - - were 10 

asked to be here no later than 5:30 P.M.  Now-- 11 

MALE VOICE:  [Interposing] - - doing a 12 

Spanish translation.  I need - - .  Okay. 13 

MS. HARRIS:  --at the first opportune 14 

moment.  We want to be respectful of everyone's 15 

time here this evening. 16 

The - - elected officials will arrive at 17 

different times throughout the evening.  If they 18 

wish to speak, we will do our best to 19 

accommodate them at the first opportune moment.  20 

Those who were here at the start of the public - 21 

- will be first. 22 

As you saw on the agenda that was posted 23 

outside of the auditorium, the format of 24 

tonight's joint public hearing will include a 25 
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presentation of the proposal and a presentation 1 

by hearing participants, followed by public 2 

comment.  Speakers should have already signed up 3 

outside of the auditorium.  Public comment can 4 

be no longer than two minutes each.  The time 5 

will be strictly followed, and speakers will be 6 

informed when their designated time has ended.   7 

There will be a question and answer period 8 

this evening.  If you have a question, please 9 

write your question on the index card that was 10 

supplied at the sign-in table when you arrived - 11 

- .  While the public comments are taking place, 12 

staff members will organize the questions into 13 

categories and get them ready for the Q&A 14 

period.  Some questions will be asked directly 15 

from the index cards and others will be batched 16 

under headings in order to avoid repetitiveness.  17 

Even though -- whatever questions we do not get 18 

to this evening, even though I'm pretty sure we 19 

can - - , they will be posted on the DOE website 20 

prior to the - - .   21 

If, at the end of the hearing, you still 22 

have questions, we encourage you to direct them 23 

to us by calling the phone number which can be 24 

found on the fact sheet.  The fact sheets are 25 
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also on that table where you signed in at.  Or 1 

send them to us via email. 2 

So, just before I start, the telephone 3 

number is 212-374-5159.  Again, 212-374-5159, 4 

and the email address where you could direct 5 

your questions or comments to is - - 6 

04proposals, with an S, at schools, with an S, 7 

dot N-Y-C dot G-O-V.   8 

I would like to now introduce the panel, 9 

which is - - public hearing, Deputy Chair Mark 10 

Sternberg and Maria Cofield [phonetic].  And the 11 

- - is here as well as members of the school's 12 

leadership team. 13 

We are also joined by Melissa Mark Viverito 14 

of the New York City Council.  Deputy Chair? 15 

MR. MARK STERBERG:  Thank you, Melissa.  16 

Thank you everybody for being here.  Again, my 17 

name is Mark Sternberg.  I serve as Deputy - - 18 

for the Division of Portfolio Planning.  I'm 19 

going to give a very brief, if I may, overview 20 

of the proposal this evening and then we look 21 

forward to - - and then from folks who are going 22 

to offer public comment - - conversation. 23 

Let me first acknowledge that the principal 24 

of M.S. 45 is here.  I'd like to - - is here so 25 
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we thank you, Melissa, for your leadership and 1 

your presence here this evening. 2 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.   3 

MR. STERBERG:  I want to talk for a moment 4 

about what tonight is and what tonight isn't, 5 

and then talk through some of our concerns, the 6 

concerns frankly about achievement and - - that 7 

bring us to this kind of decision.  And this is 8 

a very difficult decision, a very difficult 9 

proposal for us to make, the most dramatic - - 10 

that we've proposed.  And then explain a few of 11 

the details - - proceed to public comment. 12 

So tonight is intended to be a few things 13 

and it's intended not, or not intended to be a 14 

few things, and I'd like to start with what 15 

tonight isn't. 16 

Tonight is not a decision point.  We do not 17 

decide tonight that this school will close.  We 18 

do not decide tonight that the panel will 19 

actually pick up this proposal. 20 

Tonight is also not a night when I will sit 21 

up here and attempt to convince those who 22 

disagree with this proposal that they are wrong 23 

or we are right.   24 

Tonight isn't intended to be a hearing.  25 
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Tonight is an opportunity for the - - to, very 1 

simply, explain the proposal that is put forward 2 

here, explain -- and we're joined now by the 3 

Superintendent, - - . 4 

Explain briefly some of the factors that 5 

have brought us here, and do this so that we can 6 

bring the voices from tonight and the voices 7 

from this community into our decision making 8 

process.  9 

We have spent the last several months 10 

engaging on the decision, meeting with this 11 

leadership team, and meeting with the faculty, 12 

and arrived at this decision with heavy hearts.  13 

There is no joy in this decision.  This is a 14 

most dramatic intervention as you can -- we have 15 

in our arsenal, and we want to be transparent 16 

with folks about how we arrived this - - . 17 

We expect tonight to hear from both adults, 18 

and students, and alum, and elected officials, 19 

and community advocates who believe in this 20 

school and who will disagree with our decision.  21 

We welcome that input.   22 

At the end of the day, my job in working 23 

with Donald and - - the Chancellor and in 24 

leading the Portfolio Board for the New York 25 
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City Department of Education is to confront a 1 

very difficult set of facts about performance 2 

and demand for this school.  And what I would 3 

say briefly is offered in detail in the 4 

Education - - which I believe is here - - -- 5 

copies are outside -- is that our concerns about 6 

student achievement at M.S. 45 are sincere, and 7 

they're reflected in several of the data points 8 

that we see - - school. 9 

Progress report data is evaluated on what we 10 

like to think of apples to apples comparison.  11 

You look at the student - - school and we 12 

identify the 39 other schools across New York 13 

City that served its student population that is 14 

most similar to this school.  And we asked how 15 

the school is doing compared to those other 16 

schools on the missions of not just math and 17 

English and literacy performance, and those 18 

dimensions, the school is performing very -- 19 

it's struggling.  It's struggling compared to 20 

the peer group, it's struggling compared to the 21 

city-wide - - .  But we also look at - - 22 

absolute proficiency and on growth.  We look at 23 

- - .  We look at the answer that parents and 24 

students give to us on simple questions like am 25 
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I challenged here?  Do I feel safe coming to 1 

work?  Do I feel safe at this school?  And, 2 

overwhelmingly, we see problematic answers. 3 

And so we have to confront those answers, 4 

and that's what we're hoping to do this evening.  5 

And, again, I expect that spirited exchange and 6 

look forward to your input. 7 

So I also want to just point out that are 8 

mentioned in educational impact statement, this 9 

department posted it formally, the impact 10 

statement for the closure of M.S. 45 on January 11 

14, 2013, and the impact statement offers some 12 

detail about these trends that I'm going to be 13 

talking about in terms of the student 14 

achievement and performance.  In a separate 15 

impact statement, the Department is supposed to 16 

expand the grades served by Harlem [phonetic] 17 

Village Leadership Academy in this building.  18 

HVA Leadership currently serves students in 19 

kindergarten through fifth grade, and it gives 20 

students in kindergarten and fifth grade a 21 

lottery, given priority through this - - . 22 

One brief note before we move to public 23 

comment of the implications for families 24 

currently served by M.S. 45 if the panel should 25 
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proceed with the vote and if the issue - - .  1 

So again, if that happens, M.S. 45 will close at 2 

the conclusion of the 2012-2013 school year.  3 

Current eight grade students who need - - 4 

promotional standards will complete middle 5 

school at M.S. 45 and have already started 6 

participating in the high school application 7 

process, so they are applying to high schools 8 

for - - and will proceed into ninth grade per 9 

that process.   10 

It is expected that other students at M.S. 11 

45, current sixth and seventh grade students, 12 

will enroll in the - - Middle School next year, 13 

and we are joined this evening by several 14 

members of our - - and the - - staff who can 15 

speak with families about the process.  We will 16 

work with the school to consult directly and 17 

individually with families about their options.  18 

Those families residing in this - - will be 19 

given priority options to available -- schools 20 

that have available seats in District 4, and 21 

similarly, for other districts.  If a family 22 

lives in District 5, they will have first 23 

priority to schools in those districts.  In 24 

District 5 or wherever they reside, we will make 25 
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sure that families have proper - - to make a 1 

choice over the coming -- in the weeks that 2 

follow the panel - - . 3 

So that includes my overview of the proposed 4 

report to - - . 5 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.  The next report 6 

will be given by the - - .   7 

[Crosstalk] 8 

Hector? 9 

[Crosstalk] 10 

HECTOR:  I don't know about - - sit down.   11 

MS. HARRIS:  Are you-- 12 

HECTOR:  - - do you understand?  Thank you.  13 

Before you talk out of line - - first. 14 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you, Hector.  Are you-- 15 

HECTOR:  Oh, yes.  I want to - - .  - - . 16 

MS. HARRIS:  Before you start, just want -- 17 

- - sign up is closing at 6:15.  If you wish to 18 

give public comments this evening, please just 19 

sign up at the table outside the auditorium.  20 

Also, - -  21 

FEMALE VOICE:  Yes. 22 

MS. HARRIS:  I - - . 23 

[Crosstalk] 24 

MS. HARRIS:  I have your - - . 25 
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[Crosstalk] 1 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.  Okay. 2 

HECTOR:  Good evening, parents.  - - I'm 3 

glad they came out.  I just want to make a quick 4 

statement to bring - - up to speed. 5 

I’m - - Education - - and - - regarding 6 

process, but at the end of the day, the DOE 7 

would say that it mandated for - - to be at the 8 

table.  We've been boycotting every hearing ever 9 

since God knows, since I've been the President, 10 

just to show that there ain't no such thing as 11 

mandation [phonetic].  They're going to go 12 

forward and process, usually the data shows or a 13 

proposal is placed and it gets to the panel of 14 

education.  It usually votes one way.  But 15 

besides that, that's the process of - - .   16 

Going forward, once again, I have good 17 

relationships with a certain degree, to this 18 

degree, with some of the - - that are in front 19 

you.  At the end of the day, the needs and 20 

concerns of the community is strictly a middle 21 

school problem.  My question always was you 22 

never gave any input on going forward, should we 23 

put smaller DOE school, should we put a smaller 24 

middle school?  We never had conversations 25 
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regarding the needs and concerns of the 1 

building and the community, so this is the 2 

reason why we're not sitting up there tonight.  3 

And that's, my members are in the audience and 4 

we're here to support y'all as parents and y'all 5 

as community and faculty members. 6 

To get to that, to get to that -- at the end 7 

of the day, closing the school and proposing a 8 

charter school to expand doesn't meet the needs 9 

and concerns of our community.  Now, once again, 10 

it doesn't take a rocket scientist to figure out 11 

that it doesn't meet the needs and concerns of 12 

our community.  It might meet the need and 13 

concerns of our community five, six years from 14 

now, but let's talk about the now.  Let's talk 15 

about the children that are going to be impacted 16 

by this move.  Let's talk about the open seats 17 

that some of our children who go to certain 18 

schools that may be, I'm willing to go on the 19 

record saying, may be next year at this time, 20 

you'll be in the same position as a parent, 21 

trying to figure out where does my child got to 22 

go next? 23 

Now, once again, it has to stop.  When I 24 

mean it has to stop, we have to have a little 25 
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more consideration on the needs and concerns 1 

of the building and the community that they're 2 

dealing with.  I just still don't understand the 3 

logic that expansion of Village Academy, pre-K 4 

to first, pre-K to second, is actually serving 5 

the needs and concerns of the community. 6 

I have yet to hear anybody speak about the 7 

now; what are you going to do with the children 8 

that are here now?  You understand?  And I'm 9 

willing to go on record, and my message is 10 

toward, to your parents, not really toward the 11 

panel, 'cause they have a process to follow.  12 

Like you just witnessed, two minutes ago, a so-13 

called - - trying to tell me to sit down.  Are 14 

you serious?  Welcome to East Harlem.  Do you 15 

understand?  If that's the way you get treated 16 

as an individual, imagine as a whole.   17 

So my question is, and I’m pretty sure I 18 

know what the smoke-and-mirror answer is, if 19 

this school was being capped for about 3-1/2 20 

years -- I might want to use the word - - the 21 

word is - - .  Now, don't get me wrong.  The 22 

school did have issues, but that doesn't mean it 23 

gives you the authority to come in and play big 24 

- - and make your own changes.  No.  Have some 25 
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consideration, come to the community, and I 1 

guarantee you, we'll figure something out.   2 

But at the end of the day, it doesn't meet 3 

the needs and concerns.  About a month and a 4 

half ago, I asked the network did you know that 5 

this school was being capped about 2-1/2 years?  6 

Everybody stated no, no, no.  People wanted to 7 

go on record saying, well, Hector, the lack of 8 

enrollment, the lack of enrollment.  But the 9 

truth of the matter is y'all caused the lack of 10 

enrollment by capping the school for 3-1/2 years 11 

and just downsizing classrooms.  It wasn't the 12 

lack of enrollment to junior high school 45.  It 13 

was the lack of giving you the option to apply 14 

to the school.  You understand?  Because, don't 15 

get me wrong, there's serious -- and time is 16 

always the essence.  Given the size of - - this 17 

school finally received a leader.  You 18 

understand?  The principal that was here now, 19 

that received a hot mess of what the last 20 

principal did to this building, out of respect 21 

to her and the leadership that she brought to 22 

the building, it's a little disturbing that you 23 

feel that the best proposal you could come up 24 

with is expansion of charter.  Why can't you go 25 
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back to like 3-1/2 years ago - - if I'm 1 

correct, your proposed two small middle school 2 

DOE schools? 3 

Now, once again, are we doing our homework 4 

or are they doing their homework?  Remember, the 5 

proposal speaks for itself.  Closure, and their 6 

best decision is expansion of a charter.  Now, 7 

have you heard us in this conversation?  Not at 8 

all.  Have you heard any of our suggestions be 9 

heard?  Not at all.  But people have heard me.  10 

Don't get me wrong.  We all from the same 11 

community.  You need to understand you can be a 12 

one-man army.  You understand?  And it's living 13 

proof that we got a nice, well-dressed man 14 

there, took my baseball cap wearing self and 15 

thought I was coming here to - - didn't know who 16 

I was or what I do.  And if that happens in our 17 

own backyard, imagine what happens behind closed 18 

doors.  And I just want you to take charge and - 19 

- .  Thank you. 20 

[Applause] 21 

MS. HARRIS:  This will now conclude the 22 

formal presentation.  I'll invite Lynn Sanchez 23 

to give remarks on behalf of Assembly Member 24 

Robert Rodriguez. 25 
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MS. LYNN SANCHEZ:  Assembly Member-- 1 

MALE VOICE:  - - . 2 

MS. HARRIS:  Please proceed, yes. 3 

MS. SANCHEZ:  Okay, so Assembly Member 4 

Robert Rodriguez is not present, so he has a 5 

statement.  It says "Dear - - , as Assembly 6 

Member of the 68th New York State Assembly 7 

District, I write to express my decision of the 8 

proposed closure of junior high school - - ."  9 

Sorry.  "As we discussed with your staff - - 10 

although - - 45 was not on the - - it was 11 

experiencing significant challenges.  The school 12 

- - and students were not performing well, and 13 

the school needed extra support for students 14 

with high needs.  Since the implementation, of 15 

Principal Alexa - - , the community has seen 16 

positive changes.  Such improvements include 17 

significantly less loitering, more students in 18 

classes, greater emphasis on achievement from 19 

the administration, and increase in effort on 20 

behalf of the teachers to meet the needs of 21 

students.  Whether these efforts would have 22 

produced significant academic achievement gains 23 

remains to be seen.  However, these signs of 24 

improvement are indicators that with support 25 
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from the Department of Education, the school 1 

would be able to better serve the students.  2 

There have been many examples of schools going 3 

from the state's worst list to the top 4 

performing schools when given proper leadership 5 

and adequate time.  It does appear that the new 6 

leadership showed significant potential, but a 7 

few months is not enough time to turn around a 8 

school.   9 

In December, we were notified that the 10 

school was on the early - - list.  On January 11 

4th, we were notified that the school was going 12 

to be closed.  There was a miscommunication.  13 

The details of this decision to bypass early 14 

engagement and go straight to closure was never 15 

shared with my office and are of concern to me.  16 

 Our community's primary concern is having a 17 

school that meets the needs of a variety of 18 

population of students.  With the peer index 19 

schools of 1.93 and 32% of students having 20 

disability, and increase of 2% from the previous 21 

year, junior high school M.S. 45 has one of the 22 

toughest populations to serve in the district 23 

for any new principal.  In the past, we've 24 

discussed the challenges with the timing of 25 
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progress reports and opportunity to observe 1 

progress after real change has taken place.   2 

While our students do not have time to 3 

waste, the recent progress report is only 4 

reflective of academic achievement and school 5 

environment under the former leader.  The 6 

evidence suggests progress is being made and I 7 

would like to strongly encourage your 8 

consideration to adding additional support to 9 

the new administration.   10 

As your office moves forward, I request that 11 

you give thoughtful consideration to your 12 

aforementioned as well as feedback provided by 13 

the Superintendent, community board - - , and 14 

other elected officials.   15 

Sincerely, Robert D. Rodriguez, Assembly - -16 

 , State Assembly, District 68." 17 

[Applause] 18 

Thank you. 19 

[Crosstalk] 20 

MS. HARRIS:  I now invite Council Woman 21 

Melissa Mark Viverito to give remarks. 22 

MS. MELISSA MARK VIVERITO:  Hi.  Good 23 

evening.  I want to thank all the parents and 24 

all the school community members that are here.  25 
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I know some community members; I know that 1 

there are those that don't have children but 2 

that have some affinity to this school.  I want 3 

to thank the community reps that are here.  4 

And I just want to start off by saying I've 5 

been seeing a lot of you, Deputy Chancellor, 6 

these days in some good instances, as we did 7 

last week, but, unfortunately, more often than 8 

not, it has to do with the - - closing some of 9 

our school in my district in the Bronx, - - 10 

Harlem.  And I just have to say that, 11 

philosophically, I'm opposed to the consequent 12 

closing of schools.  And I think that I'm 13 

extremely concerned because of the disruption 14 

that it causes, not only for the children, the 15 

school community, but also the families and the 16 

large community as well. 17 

As been indicated, I'm going to align myself 18 

with a lot of the comments that our Assemblyman 19 

made in his statement that we really have to 20 

give schools an opportunity to change and to 21 

show improvement.  And the fact that, even in 22 

your own - - and - - people that are here and 23 

hearing the sentiment of the principal is being 24 

very well received.  And she, unfortunately, has 25 
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not had a long tenure here in this school, and 1 

we need to allow her style, her leadership to 2 

really thrive and to allow the change to take 3 

place.  And one year is not enough to see that 4 

happen, particularly when we're talking about a 5 

population, a school population, that has 29% 6 

special education - - and 25% - - students.  If 7 

anything, we have to be mindful that more time 8 

and attention and support is needed to really 9 

support that school population.  So that's 10 

clearly something that stands out. 11 

So the principal - - here one year is 12 

beginning to make major changes in the school 13 

climate and progress is being made, as can be 14 

attested in your EIS [phonetic] and also talking 15 

to the parents that are here.  So it's really 16 

not fair for the ELA [phonetic] to punish this 17 

school, to punish the parents and the students 18 

for the lack of leadership and administration of 19 

the prior principal. 20 

[Applause] 21 

Other concern is that it appears that 22 

there's been very limited and not much 23 

meaningful effort to get the community input or 24 

provide the school with the support that it 25 
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needed.  And so obviously, what happens in 1 

these situations is that we see schools being 2 

pitted against each other, we see families being 3 

pitted against each other, and the community 4 

being pitted against each other, 'cause what 5 

you're offering is to allow a charter school to 6 

expand in its building at the expense of another 7 

building.  So that doesn't really set up a good 8 

dynamic. 9 

What's also interesting is that the 10 

Department of Education, from my understanding, 11 

and it did present two action plans to the 12 

school community in the last two months as part 13 

of the early engagement process, which included 14 

one - - change, professional development, and 15 

new program; or two, a phasing out of the school 16 

over time by not accepting new students as - - 17 

students through graduation.  But immediate 18 

closure was not listed as an option, and so 19 

you're imposing of the shutting down of the 20 

school, and this is something that obviously 21 

does not sit well and does not build a good 22 

rapport with the community at large.   23 

Studies have shown that school closings 24 

disrupt the community and fail to improve the 25 
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education of our students.  And obviously, my 1 

thought is that we need to invest in our 2 

schools, not shut them down.  So that's 3 

something that we would hope, and there is a lot 4 

of call on the DOE to think about a moratorium 5 

on school closures and I very strongly align 6 

myself with that position.   7 

M.S. 45's last quality review report stated 8 

that the school has a coherent strategy to 9 

support student learning that aligns curriculum, 10 

instruction, and organizational decisions.  And 11 

so we really do encourage the DOE to provide 12 

strategic support and stability - - to 13 

effectively educate our high-needs students, 14 

something that we don't see consistently with 15 

charter schools.  And if they don't serve, at 16 

least at this level, at this grade, our special 17 

needs students, and that obviously is a problem 18 

when you are shuffling schools or shuffling 19 

students from one school to another, shuffling 20 

them because a school doesn’t perform; because 21 

they're not getting proper support.  And you 22 

shut it down and the kids are shuffled off to 23 

another school does not set off a good dynamic 24 

for that child - - . 25 
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So this administration has closed over 120 1 

schools during its tenure, primarily in low-2 

income communities and communities of color.  So 3 

studies have shown that schools that closed have 4 

served in the city's most challenged students.  5 

And that really, again, is a concern, so what 6 

happens to the education of those children?  7 

What happens to the future of those children?   8 

So again, I would ask as the Assemblyman has 9 

and as many people in this room are asking that 10 

this decision be reconsidered and that you 11 

surround the school with the additional support 12 

to make sure that it thrives and that students 13 

get the - - that they need.  Thank you.   14 

[Applause]  15 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.  - - .  Please 16 

remember to keep your comments under two 17 

minutes.  The DOE staff member sitting right 18 

over there will be keeping time and will waive 19 

the sign to alert you when you have 30 seconds 20 

remaining and when your time is up.  We want to 21 

make sure everyone's voices will be heard this 22 

evening, so please be sensitive to those who are 23 

in attendance tonight and keep this - - .   24 

I would like to now call - - numbers one 25 
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through eight to come line up right by that - 1 

- over there; numbers one through eight. 2 

You should have your little ticket, the 3 

little ticket, so you should hand your ticket to 4 

them and you can just line up - - . 5 

FEMALE VOICE:  I have one. 6 

MS. HARRIS:  Yes.  Your ticket. 7 

MALE VOICE:  - - . 8 

MS. HARRIS:  Sir, - - . 9 

[Crosstalk] 10 

MS. SERGEY SILVA:  Good evening, everyone, 11 

and thank you, parents, for coming.  I'm here on 12 

behalf of the United Federation of Teachers.  My 13 

name is Sergey Silva, and I am the district 14 

representative, and I’m here for Representative 15 

Michael - - who is the President of the United 16 

Federation of Teachers.  And we're here to ask 17 

the panel to take consideration of giving this 18 

school more time. 19 

Many years, I've been working in this 20 

district, actually 19 years, and I've seen 21 

junior high school 45 in their ups and when 22 

they're down.  Two years ago, I was - - and the 23 

leadership that was placed in this school was 24 

not the right leadership.  I voiced it.  The 25 
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United Federation - - voiced it.  We voiced it 1 

in many, many letters and in many, many - - .  2 

Right now, this school - - opportunity - - .   3 

She is the right leader for this school, and 4 

giving a person just from September to December, 5 

that's not enough time.  And as you heard the 6 

other speakers before me, 29%, 25% -- that is 7 

almost higher than the rest of New York City in 8 

the population of ELS special ed other school 9 

has.  This school needs to be given time.   10 

They finally did it right.  They put a 11 

leader in here that has - - in her school.  The 12 

children are not - - . 13 

[Applause] 14 

The children are - - learning and the first 15 

step to learning is being in classrooms so that 16 

you can learn.  And this is the leadership 17 

that's here presently that will do this.  Please 18 

consider and give this school more time. 19 

[Applause]   20 

FEMALE VOICE:  - - . 21 

MR. LUIS DIAZ:  Good afternoon.  My name is 22 

Luis Diaz [phonetic].  I - - I gang banged and I 23 

- - born and raised and many of you sitting here 24 

because of what we did in the sixties.  The view 25 
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of colors and view of minority got those jobs 1 

because of what we did in the sixties.  - - 2 

number one.  This is not about kids.  It's not 3 

about my - - .  It's not about my - - .  It's 4 

about - - .  - - you come in this building that 5 

wants to buy up my property because you are - -6 

 .  You're kicking my people out from - - . 7 

[Applause] 8 

And anybody - - .  - - okay, 'cause you sit 9 

on this Board and you take a look at that Board, 10 

it's a done deal.  I love my people.  It ain't 11 

about kids, folks.  It's never been.  It's about 12 

money.  It's about real estate.  It's about 13 

taking over this community and giving those 14 

multi-billion dollar corporations multi-million 15 

dollar - - and those are apartments that are 16 

around here now a - - , to educate their kids.  17 

That's the real deal, okay?  So when you get it 18 

together, I ain't dealing with no lies.  Okay.  19 

Don't come to me.  The yin and yang of 20 

statistics is just that: yin, yang.  Okay?  21 

Don't come at me with that.  Come at me with the 22 

truth.  You don't want us in.  You want to buy 23 

us out.  You want to kick us out, and you want 24 

to take our real estate when there's no other 25 
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place to live, right?  And then you want to 1 

blame it on the kids and you want to blame it on 2 

the citizens and - - .  Be real.  Bloomberg and 3 

the 1%, that's my - - . 4 

[Applause] 5 

MS. PRINCESS MARTIN:  Good evening.  I'm Ms. 6 

Princess Martin.   7 

MR. DIAZ:  [Interposing] That's where it's 8 

at. 9 

MS. MARTIN:  I'm a parent of a sixth grader.  10 

I'm here to tell my story.  I'm here with hope.  11 

I found hope when I walked in this building when 12 

my son was being bullied in another school.  13 

Faculty had called me telling me how great my 14 

son is, and it's so unfortunate that he's being 15 

bullied instead of calling the other parents.  I 16 

found that insulting, for them to take time out 17 

for me to come to the school to talk about - - .  18 

I felt that his school did not deserve my son, 19 

so I promptly removed him.   20 

I was informed about the great job that Ms. 21 

- - was doing here.  I'm aware of the history.  22 

I'm a parent that puts the child's education 23 

first, and when I walked in this school, the 24 

feeling that I had with the halls being cleared, 25 
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with the school being clean, with the security 1 

that knew about the children that were fighting 2 

outside, they knew the history of these 3 

children.  They knew everything about them.  It 4 

gave me a sense that I could go to work and earn 5 

wage so I can take care of my family.  I felt 6 

good, because I feel good sending my son to a 7 

school where he tells me the teacher came and 8 

told me.  I said, "What's the problem?"  The 9 

teacher came and told the kids.  That's my 10 

problem.  Walked in here, since he's met Ms. - -11 

 , he's come home, he's opening that book up.  12 

He refuses to wear pajamas in the street.  He 13 

says I have to think about my character.  Now, 14 

this is only from November, okay, to December, 15 

when we got the news.  He came in and he felt at 16 

home right away.  And I'm so happy Mr.  you 17 

said, the school is not just being looked at for 18 

the educational value or the scores.  You said 19 

that we're looking at it for kids feeling safe 20 

coming to school, teachers feeling safe coming 21 

to work.  Give us a chance.  I mean, really, 22 

give us a chance.  Do not let me shuffle my son 23 

off again.  This is ridiculous.  He needs to be 24 

bonding with children.  He needs to be making 25 
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his best friends, okay?   1 

[Applause] 2 

- - all over the place, that's not going to 3 

happen for him.  My heart is bleeding.  I ask 4 

that you please reconsider your decisions today 5 

and thank you for coming out and hearing us. 6 

FEMALE VOICE:  - - .  Next speaker. 7 

MS. PROVIDENCIA PADILLA:  Hi.  My name is 8 

Providencia Padilla.  I'm the - - President.  9 

I'm a - - member, and also parent of an eighth 10 

grader, and he's going to graduate, so I really 11 

wanted to be here, but - - school, I'm here to 12 

represent all the children.  I've been in the 13 

community 32 years.  I graduated from here.  - - 14 

proposal - - trying to close the school, it 15 

hurts, 'cause I graduated from here. 16 

My biggest concern was that DOE was saying 17 

that 45 was a failing school for many years.  I 18 

don't understand how it is - - the DOE knew that 19 

we were a failing school, yet you put a failing 20 

principal into our school. 21 

[Applause] 22 

If these parents can get this principal out 23 

of their school because he is a failing 24 

principal, why would we have to deal with him?  25 
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Why would we have to get - - ? 1 

[Applause] 2 

He was removed.  They did a rally, 3 

everything to get him out of there, but he was 4 

not for the children.  And obviously, when he 5 

was here, he wasn't for our children either.  We 6 

were being capped.  He knew he was being capped.  7 

You guys knew we were being capped, but we 8 

didn't know.   9 

[Applause] 10 

- - why is it that if we were a failing 11 

school from the beginning, why were we not given 12 

the chance to reconstruct?  - - because they 13 

said that he was given the opportunity and he 14 

didn't take it, so obviously he's trying to fail 15 

us.  And you guys knew he was going to fail us, 16 

because you guys already knew that you wanted us 17 

to go down to a charter school. 18 

[Applause] 19 

When I first heard this proposal - - right 20 

there, when they said they wanted to close the 21 

school down, they didn't say anything about a 22 

charter school.  But I said to him, I said 23 

they're going to expand the Harlem Village.  24 

When we go the paper, what did it say?  It said 25 
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they wanted to expand Harlem Village.  It's 1 

not fair to our kids.   2 

[Applause] 3 

- - . 4 

MALE VOICE:  [Interposing] Thank you. 5 

MS. PADILLA:  They don't care about our 6 

kids.  They only care that they're going to make 7 

them money.  They don't care about our kids, so 8 

why do our kids have to move from our building 9 

that we've owned for many years to put a charter 10 

school here?  I - - guarantee you that.  They're 11 

going to be moved to a school that next year is 12 

going to probably closing down as well.  So my 13 

suggestion is for you guys to give us a chance 14 

to reconstruct, do something, help our kids, 15 

because they don't deserve it.  'Cause then you 16 

start to think is it the kids that are 17 

threatening the kids?  No.  It's DOE threatening 18 

our kids. 19 

[Applause] 20 

FEMALE VOICE:  Thank you.  Next speaker. 21 

MS. KATRINA BRYCE:  Good evening.  My name 22 

is Katrina Bryce.  - - at M.S. 45 and I've been 23 

at M.S. 45 since 2000.  I started with DOE in 24 

1997 as a school aide at - - Elementary, and 25 
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then I went across the street in six months as 1 

- - .   2 

This is my community.  I live, literally, 3 

two minutes away from this school.  I've seen 45 4 

go through their worst.  I remember one year, I 5 

was afraid to come in here.  We had Latin Kings; 6 

we had every type of gang you could name.  But 7 

we changed.  It takes a while to change the 8 

climate of a school. 9 

For the past two years has been the worst 10 

two years that I've had at this school.  Even 11 

with the gangs, it wasn't that bad.  It was 12 

totally disorganized.  Kids were roaming the 13 

halls.  The teachers pretty much were afraid to 14 

come into the building.  I'm not afraid.  Like I 15 

said, I live two minutes away.   16 

But the climate of this school has changed.  17 

The students are in their classes.  Teachers and 18 

students have a good relationship, and the 19 

school is no longer a safety concern.  The kids 20 

feel safe here.  I'm actually worried, and the 21 

kids are worried.  They don't want to go to 22 

other schools.  I live right here.  I know how 23 

it is.  Our kids are afraid to go to Tito Puente 24 

[phonetic] or to Jackie - - which is having the 25 
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same type of meeting tomorrow.   1 

If you live in Wagner, you can't go there.  2 

So our kids need to be here.  They feel safe 3 

here.  Not only that, we have sixth graders that 4 

just came into the building.  It's a family 5 

here.  We're a very small school, but it's a 6 

family here.  Seventh graders feel like a 7 

family, and so do the eighth graders. 8 

Charter schools are taking the place of 9 

public schools, and it's a shame, because the 10 

charter schools will not enroll our special 11 

education students.  The charter schools will 12 

not enroll our ELS students.  And I have a 13 

grandson in a charter school on - - and - - and 14 

he's in kindergarten and he's barely making it 15 

in charter school.   16 

They can say whether the kids can stay; they 17 

can say whether the kids can go.  We don't have 18 

that choice.  We have to service our kids in 19 

this community.  We have to work with them.  We 20 

don't have the choice to kick the child out 21 

because they have on blue socks when they have 22 

to wear black socks.   23 

So all I’m saying is we need to give -- we 24 

gave the wrong principal two years.  We need 25 
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give Ms. - - two years or more.  We need to 1 

give her - - . 2 

[Applause] 3 

FEMALE VOICE:  Thank you.  Next speaker. 4 

MS. CYNTHIA CHERRY:  Hello.  My name is 5 

Cynthia Cherry.  I’m the past - - for M.S. 45.  6 

After 2010-2011 school year, we had a new 7 

principal come in.  When he came in, we - - five 8 

candidates.  His - - was part of the process, 9 

the - - process.  He only showed up.  At that 10 

time, - - principal, so he became the principal.  11 

- - .  We need another - - process.  - - .  - - 12 

did it again.  This time three other candidates.  13 

We picked two of the candidates, leaving him 14 

out.  All of a sudden, the other candidates 15 

don’t want to be a part of the - - and he gets 16 

put back here.  He was put back here.  So that - 17 

-  18 

[Applause] 19 

As far as my knowledge is, the - - process, 20 

if you're a candidate, you shouldn’t have - - a 21 

part of the - - process.  His old roommate was a 22 

part of the - - process. 23 

[Applause] 24 

She was a part of the whole process for 25 
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years.  I asked them for 2-1/2 years, I asked 1 

them about the capping, the downsizing affecting 2 

our school.  No, we're not phasing out.  You 3 

could ask the Superintendent; no, we're not 4 

phasing out.  We're not capping; we're not doing 5 

anything.   6 

We had - - and 2010 -- 2012 - - both reports 7 

came back that we were staying open; it wasn't 8 

downsizing and it wasn't closing us.  They lied.  9 

You guys knew from day one, you brought that man 10 

here to close the school.  To the kids they felt 11 

the principal failed the school.  He stayed in 12 

his office locked in there and went to parole 13 

hearings every day - - . 14 

[Applause] 15 

The teachers couldn't teach because he's 16 

having too many meetings in his - - .  So what 17 

are the kids supposed to do?  I was here every 18 

day as a parent and as PA [phonetic], okay?  So 19 

they sent him here to fail our school.  From 20 

what my knowledge is, I've met the new principal 21 

and she has done a 360 degree turn. 22 

[Applause] 23 

- - know what you did.   24 

FEMALE VOICE:  Thank you.  Next speaker. 25 
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MS. LYNN SANCHEZ:  Good evening.  My name 1 

is Lynn Sanchez.  I'm the CEC [phonetic] - - 2 

four.  I'm here in support of the parents.  I 3 

want to be sure that you reconsider your 4 

proposal and allow Ms. - - M.S. 45.  I'm also -- 5 

I was reading - - the proposal for the closure 6 

of M.S. 45, and I tend to read the document and 7 

then I -- curiosity went over me 'cause you made 8 

some incredible comments here.  And it says, "As 9 

a result, the DOE initiated a comprehensive 10 

review of M.S. 45 with the goal of determining 11 

what intensive support and intervention would 12 

best benefit the students and the M.S. 45 13 

community."  What was the support given to 45?  14 

That's my question.  And then it says intensive, 15 

so my question is what was the support and when 16 

was support given?   17 

Then the next paragraph says, "Currently, 18 

M.S. 45 serves only 20 sixth grade students, 32, 19 

seventh grade students, and 83 eighth grade 20 

students.  In addition, such low student 21 

enrollment is evidence that the school is not in 22 

- - of the community."  And my understanding is 23 

that for the past two years, the Department of 24 

Education has been capping the school, so that's 25 
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why you have such low enrollment.  That's 1 

another thing. 2 

And then, lastly, I mean, you have a 3 

principal that's been here.  She's made 4 

tremendous amounts of progress with the 5 

students.  The students love her.  They are all 6 

in class.  I hear wonderful comments about her 7 

from both students and parents, and you're not 8 

giving her an opportunity.  So I'm just here as 9 

a representative for the district to ask you to 10 

give her an opportunity to change this school, 11 

to make a difference, to improve the school.  12 

You have to give her an opportunity so the 13 

school can improve.  Thank you. 14 

FEMALE VOICE:  Thank you.  Speakers with 15 

numbers nine through seventeen, please line up 16 

over by Suzanne [phonetic], nine through 17 

seventeen. 18 

[Crosstalk] 19 

Numbers nine through seventeen. 20 

[Crosstalk] 21 

MS. EMMA GLENN:  My name is Ms. Emma Glenn, 22 

and I'm here -- I work with - - but I am here 23 

tonight because my son was a student here when 24 

Principal - - was here, and I mean, it was 25 
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really just terrible. 1 

FEMALE VOICE:  - - . 2 

MS. GLENN:  All right.   3 

[Crosstalk] 4 

Yeah, but long story short, I just don't 5 

think the school should close because what 6 

people says is true.  I've talked and met with 7 

the new principal, Principal - - , and she is 8 

wonderful, and she is what these children 9 

needed.  And - - .  And I also, I - - go on the 10 

Internet and I see what - - had been somewhere 11 

else, and he did basically the same thing he did 12 

here, and that was nothing.  I wanted to meet 13 

him numerous times and I couldn't, and he was 14 

right in his office. 15 

This lady, even though my son was not here, 16 

I had a problem and she came to me and made me 17 

feel like family, which all of them did whenever 18 

I needed something or -- I stayed active in the 19 

school with my son.  Anyway, so, I just wanted 20 

to say I - - . 21 

[Applause] 22 

FEMALE VOICE:  Thank you.  Next speaker. 23 

[Crosstalk] 24 

MS. KARLA LORENZO:  Good evening.  My name 25 
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is Karla.  I am a student from M.S. 45.  I'm 1 

in eighth grade.  M.S. 45 shouldn't be closed 2 

down because now we have a great educated 3 

principal.  It shouldn't be closed, because we 4 

need to give Ms. - - opportunity.   5 

This school is a better place now that Ms. - 6 

- came to M.S. 45, and there has been many 7 

changes.  Last year, it looked like the 8 

principal didn't care what we - - .  This year, 9 

Ms. - - cares about us scholars [phonetic].  She 10 

wants us to succeed.  Also, last year, there 11 

were a lot of students cutting class and not 12 

paying attention.  This year, everybody is on 13 

point.  This year, thanks to Ms. - - , everybody 14 

is doing better in class and - - . 15 

Ms. - - has been a good example to everyone 16 

at M.S. 45.  Thank you, Ms. - - .  Please keep 17 

M.S. 45 open.  Thank you. 18 

FEMALE VOICE:  Thank you.  Next speaker. 19 

MR. WAMES THOMAS:  Hello everyone.   20 

[Crosstalk] 21 

To all the children that are here, can you 22 

please stand up for a minute?  To all the 23 

children that are here, could you please stand 24 

up for a minute?  These are the kids that you 25 
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need to - - why are you closing their school.  1 

See, 'cause I'm a CET [phonetic] member for 2 

District 4, and I walk all the way down from 3 

99th Street to - - .  Why I do that?  'Cause I 4 

love my - - .  And I go from Madison Avenue to 5 

the East River, and all these kids that you see 6 

up in here, they need a school to come to.  If 7 

you're behind school 45, boy, when I first came 8 

up here, I couldn't imagine how this school 9 

turned around.   10 

To all the parents that are - - , we got 11 

your back for this school.  You got your - - up 12 

in here.  You've got the CET President -- where 13 

is he at?  Anthony? 14 

FEMALE VOICE:  Yeah, he's over there. 15 

MR. THOMAS:  Yeah.  We work with him.  We've 16 

been doing this for a while now.  We're not 17 

going to let you down.  So when I come up here, 18 

I'm 61 years old.  If I could come all the way 19 

up here and - - then this school could stay 20 

open.  You understand?   21 

Now don't get me wrong -- I want to say one 22 

other last thing.  Don't get me wrong.  There's 23 

a lot of people that I have known that comes 24 

here and everything.  You got a really good, 25 
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good, good principal.  Y'all need to give her 1 

a hand, because she's doing a good job.   2 

[Applause] 3 

And without her, without her - - now, I 4 

wouldn't believe all this was happening. 5 

[Crosstalk] 6 

And I'm still coming up here, and I'm still 7 

trying to figure it out, how did you do that?  8 

But it's all right, because we going to - - .  9 

Thank you. 10 

[Applause] 11 

MR. RICK EVANSON:  Tonight, parents, members 12 

of the Department of Education, my name is Rick 13 

Evanson.  I'm a parent of a student that attends 14 

this school.  I might be the only out of place 15 

person in this building, 'cause I actually live 16 

in Brooklyn.  I work out of Long Island, so my 17 

son goes to school here.   18 

FEMALE VOICE:  Right. 19 

MR. EVANSON:  All right.  And I've got to be 20 

honest.  When I first walked into this building 21 

last year when my son had started his sixth 22 

grade class, I said what a joke this is.  Kids 23 

cursing in the hallway, talking back, 24 

disrespecting adults.  I didn't see that as 25 
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something that I wanted my son to be around.  1 

In the last year, when I've been coming back to 2 

this school, I've seen a total change.  I've 3 

seen teachers pay attention to students.  I've 4 

seen students listening to the teachers.  I've 5 

seen better dressed students.  I've seen better 6 

spoken students.  I've seen people that care 7 

about the community.   8 

I came here, and the first person that I had 9 

to deal with was Ms. Price [phonetic], 'cause 10 

she was one of the teachers for my son.  And 11 

then Ms. - - was another one of the teachers for 12 

my son.  My son's a problem for me, but he's my 13 

son.  I love him, right?  What shocks me, what 14 

drives me crazy is I'm looking at this for 2009 15 

through 2012 -- three years -- only one class 16 

remained where this whole subject was even 17 

looked at.  That class is graduating now.  So 18 

the students that are remaining in the sixth and 19 

seventh grade right now, those are the testament 20 

to what's being done by Principal - - . 21 

[Applause] 22 

- - .  I met your last principal.  A fool he 23 

was, definitely.  [Laughter] 24 

MALE VOICE:  Yes. 25 
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MALE VOICE:  Yes. 1 

MR. EVANSON:  He's walking through the 2 

hallways while kids are being disrespectful and 3 

out of place, and he's not setting them 4 

straight.  I see a problem.  Grab somebody by 5 

their arm and walk them to class. 6 

FEMALE VOICE:  Nice. 7 

MR. EVANSON:  It's a big difference.  8 

 [Laughter] 9 

FEMALE VOICE:  Thank you. 10 

[Laughter] 11 

MR. EVANSON:  It's a big difference - - and 12 

- - I'm going to tell you like this.  It's a 13 

little different that that happens, but it takes 14 

a community to raise our children. 15 

FEMALE VOICE:  Right.  16 

MR. EVANSON:  - - .  She's familiar with the 17 

community, and that's why she does what she 18 

does. 19 

FEMALE VOICE:  That's right. 20 

MR. EVANSON:  Now you took the time and put 21 

the perfect leader to lead the people, to get 22 

things done in this school.  You can't take that 23 

away.  It's the wrong move.  - - [Applause] that 24 

you have the - - knowledge of how to deal with 25 
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children and the last principal you guys just 1 

took out of there. 2 

[Applause] 3 

FEMALE VOICE:  - - next speaker. 4 

MS. IRINA REYES:  [Speaking foreign 5 

language]. 6 

TRANSLATOR:  My name is Tita Irina Reyes, 7 

and my son - - to this school.  And I'm here to 8 

let you know that we all are united fighting for 9 

this school to stay here.  We want this school 10 

to - - 45 to remain open. 11 

MS. REYES:  [Speaking foreign language]. 12 

[Applause] 13 

TRANSLATOR:  - - I want to reiterate that I 14 

want you to keep this school open.  I am the 15 

mother and the father of my son.  He attends 16 

this school.  I want you to please -- I want to 17 

see this school remain open.  We fighting, we 18 

all fighting for this school to remain open.  I 19 

think it's the best decision for you to keep 20 

this school open. 21 

[Applause] 22 

MS. REYES:  [Speaking foreign language].  23 

 [Applause] 24 

TRANSLATOR:  - - share with you, I, the 25 
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teachers, the parents, the students, we all - 1 

- and ask you again to please keep this school 2 

open.  Thank you very much. 3 

FEMALE VOICE:  Thank you.  Next speaker. 4 

[Crosstalk] 5 

MS. CANDY VASQUEZ:  Hi.  My name is Candy 6 

Vasquez [phonetic].  I am a - - in the community 7 

and here in East Harlem.  I'm born and raised in 8 

East Harlem, and I just want to give a little 9 

history from what happened back in the past to 10 

the school where we graduated from.  In Benjamin 11 

Franklin in 1982, there was a closing.  Now, as 12 

students back then, we weren't aware of how the 13 

school was going to be closed until we graduated 14 

that same day.  It is sad to know that today we 15 

have a privilege right now, okay, for us to be 16 

able to come before you and the rest of the 17 

leaders and - - to make the decisions to close 18 

this school, which we're actually - - .   19 

But back then, we weren't trying to keep the 20 

school open.  We learned a lot of things in this 21 

school, okay.  And this same foundation that we 22 

had back in the day in Benjamin Franklin when it 23 

was ready to close, we all learned.  I have a 24 

parent coordinator who was my colleague.  He was 25 
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a student of mine.  I mean, we both told each 1 

other, because - - .  We all learned how to work 2 

there.  The Board of Education actually employed 3 

us, so we could move - - , okay.  We had a lot 4 

of sports, but - - one of the best basketball 5 

high schools that was then, okay.  And a lot of 6 

our - - they all went on to professional 7 

basketball and football playing, okay.  But it 8 

was sad to see that back in the day, other 9 

people made decisions to close the school down 10 

and didn't even give us an opportunity for us, 11 

as students, to say all the positive things that 12 

came out of there.  Had it not been for that 13 

school, - - the Business Department, I've 14 

learned how to use a computer without even 15 

knowing how -- because we started with - - and 16 

doing the faxing and everything.  It came from 17 

that school.  And what I'm trying to say is that 18 

we had a solid foundation that taught us 19 

something of who we are today.  We're leaders, 20 

okay.  And you look at other people who 21 

graduated from that school graduated as leaders.  22 

And these children, today, that are - - but 23 

they're going to be our future.  And if we close 24 

down this school and don't give them an 25 
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opportunity to be in an institution that they 1 

feel safe at and that they're learning, actually 2 

learning something, okay, you might not see it, 3 

or you probably don't have the opportunity to 4 

speak to the children, but some of them are 5 

going to come here and explain to you exactly 6 

what's been going on in this institution.   7 

Along with that, they have a - - .  Now, 8 

there's all this talking about - - , about 9 

health disparities, and the fact that the 10 

children don't have enough activities to keep 11 

them busy.  But you're taking that away from 12 

them when you just - - . 13 

[Applause] okay.  Now - - to someone else to 14 

- - , I'm not so crazy about co-location 15 

[phonetic], but I believe in education, okay.  16 

And what I really believe in is that giving the 17 

opportunity to a person who just got here and 18 

she's a strong leadership [phonetic].  You can 19 

tell, okay.  And, I mean, you can tell she has 20 

military background, because that's exactly the 21 

way this school is running. 22 

[Crosstalk] 23 

[Applause] - - so I'm just asking you to 24 

have consideration, okay, just have 25 
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consideration in giving her an opportunity as 1 

well as the rest of the children to continue 2 

their education here at M.S. 45. 3 

FEMALE VOICE:  Thank you.  Next speaker. 4 

[Crosstalk] 5 

MS. MICHELE KEHN:  Hi.  My name is Michele 6 

Kehn [phonetic], and I'm here with the - - my 7 

red t-shirt and also in the back, if you're 8 

interested, we are a caucus within the United 9 

Federation of Teachers and we're trying to build 10 

a social movement that will fight against school 11 

closings like this one.  I just want to say it's 12 

sad and a pleasure also to see so many people 13 

care about education, but also sad because 14 

you're losing something that means so much to 15 

you.  And I just want to say in the back of the 16 

room, there are more school closings on the way 17 

in Northern Manhattan and all over New York 18 

City.  There's a satchel in the back of the room 19 

where the gentleman is holding up the t-shirt 20 

with the school closings that are coming up in 21 

Northern Manhattan.  Just tomorrow, - - Academy 22 

of Harlem in 2005 Madison Avenue.  Monday, 23 

February 25th, a junior high school, Jackie 24 

Robinson, at 1573 Madison Avenue.  On Tuesday, 25 



 50 

February 26th, Academy for Social Action.  1 

That's going to be a middle school - - location.  2 

And then also on Tuesday, February 26th, the 3 

high school of Graphic Communication Arts on 4 

49th Street in Midtown.  So this is not alone. 5 

And I just wanted to say just one closing 6 

word: one of the main reasons that these schools 7 

are closing and one of the main reasons the 8 

people up there feel justified in doing this is 9 

because of standardized test scores.  And these 10 

tests are becoming used now for higher and 11 

higher stakes and not just whether your child 12 

goes to college, but also whether schools are 13 

allowed to stay open.  And we have nothing to 14 

say about these standardized tests.  These tests 15 

are devised up and they're now going to be 16 

federalized to a common core and the peers, and 17 

we really have to stand up against this, because 18 

this is being used to control our schools and 19 

decide - - issues for us that we have no say in.  20 

So I just urge everybody, I want to end on a 21 

positive note, to please think about what these 22 

standardized test scores are doing, how they're 23 

watering down the curriculum, how they're making 24 

school uninteresting for our children.  And 25 
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please stand up and think of joining the 1 

Change the States movement against standardized 2 

test scores and high-stakes testing.  Thank you 3 

very much - - . 4 

FEMALE VOICE:  Thank you.  Next speaker. 5 

DR. PEDRA WARMAN:  Okay.  Good evening 6 

everybody.  I am Dr. Pedra Warman [phonetic], 7 

and I represent the Council of Supervisors and 8 

Administrators.  I - - Ernie Logan [phonetic], 9 

and what I'm going to express tonight is pretty 10 

much the views of the - - and our Director.  11 

Well, you see what happens when you're the 12 

last speaker.  - - I was going to stay and - - 13 

however, I like to - - highlight some of the 14 

issues. 15 

You heard testimonies in here of - - and 16 

they are - - .  You don't have to listen to me.  17 

You don't have to hear what I say, because I - - 18 

I get paid to represent - - .  And whatever I 19 

have to say doesn't have the - - value that - - 20 

what the parents have to say.  We need to 21 

believe of what the parents have to say.  They 22 

are the community, and remember, - - they have - 23 

- okay.  All of us get paid because the parents 24 

give us their children.   25 
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So this decision -- one thing I also would 1 

like to say - - the principal, there were two 2 

other - - and this school was very much like a - 3 

- .  And the parents said it already; I don't 4 

have to say it.   5 

So I was given three years by my two -- to 6 

turn this school around.  - - two years, but the 7 

first year was only to work on the climate of 8 

the school.  And - - has done an excellent job 9 

[Applause] - - . 10 

So the position of CSA [phonetic] is that 11 

the school should remain open with Ms. - - as 12 

the leadership.  Thank you. 13 

[Crosstalk] 14 

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKERS:  M.S. 45, going down 15 

the line.  We've got to get an education to 16 

survive.  M.S. 45, going down the line.  We've 17 

got to get an education to survive.  - - we are 18 

the best and we will not accept - - . 19 

[Applause] 20 

[Crosstalk] 21 

FEMALE VOICE:  You did great.  You did 22 

great. 23 

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  That's right. 24 

[Crosstalk] 25 
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FEMALE VOICE:  Thank you.  We have now 1 

concluded our comments - - of the evening.   2 

[Crosstalk] 3 

FEMALE VOICE:  They have numbers. 4 

[Crosstalk] 5 

MALE VOICE:  Eighteen to - - . 6 

FEMALE VOICE:  Eighteen and over - - . 7 

FEMALE VOICE:  Eighteen and over - - . 8 

[Crosstalk] 9 

MR. VELASQUEZ:  Good afternoon.  My name is 10 

- - Velasquez.   11 

[Crosstalk] 12 

Good afternoon.  My name is - - .  Good 13 

afternoon.  My name is - - Velasquez.  I'm a 14 

student in M.S. 45.  I've been in this school 15 

building for three years, and this year feels 16 

like no other year.  This school year was more - 17 

- school year - - whole lot of - - from last 18 

year - - .  Every day I wake up and feel like - 19 

- safe in school.  - - come to school every day 20 

and - - when I first met Ms. - - , I felt as if 21 

she was a loving, caring person that knew how to 22 

- - and I wouldn't come to school 'cause it was 23 

boring and nobody cared about education - - .  24 

It's different now.  I feel like Ms. - - came - 25 
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- and showed everybody that to come to school 1 

- - had fun and if people - - in the building - 2 

- .  Every time - - a pin drop in the hallway.  3 

- - nobody in the hallways.  - - class in 4 

session, no teacher is interrupted - - .  Every 5 

student is doing what they - - .  Every student 6 

is - - .  When I come to school, I feel safe and 7 

last year I didn't want to come to school - - 8 

'cause school was like - - everybody's attitude 9 

changed.  And now kids want to come to class - - 10 

no kids skipping class anymore - - just please 11 

don't close my school.   12 

[Applause] 13 

FEMALE VOICE:  Thank you.  Next speaker - -14 

 . 15 

[Crosstalk] 16 

MR. EDGAR WATSON:  My name is Edgar Watson, 17 

and I am an eighth grade student and I'm also 18 

graduating, but that doesn’t stop me from 19 

talking about the change that has - - in our 20 

school.  I think that - - cares about us like if 21 

we were her own kids.  The school - - and the 22 

academic has changed for the better.  I can't 23 

understand how the DOE is closing 45 when the - 24 

- .  I asked if the teachers are failing us or 25 
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is the DOE failing us, because to me it feels 1 

like the DOE is failing us. 2 

[Applause] 3 

FEMALE VOICE:  Thank you.  Next speaker.   4 

[Crosstalk] 5 

MALE VOICE:  Hello, ladies and gentlemen.  6 

My name is - - .  I am a student at M.S. 45.  - 7 

- I did not care about - - education.  Now we 8 

have Ms. - - .  She is strict, but she really 9 

cares about us.  - - I used to cut classes and - 10 

- .  This year, I don't cut class.  I'm still - 11 

- but I know I can change that.  I ask that you, 12 

Department of Education, please do not close our 13 

school down and give us students a chance. 14 

[Applause] 15 

FEMALE VOICE:  Thank you. 16 

[Crosstalk] 17 

JOSE:  Good evening everyone.  My name is 18 

Jose - - , and I'm a member - - . 19 

[Crosstalk] 20 

[Laughter] 21 

JOSE:  Thank you.  Once again, my name is 22 

Jose - - , and I'm a member of the - - Education 23 

Council for District 4.  I was perusing through 24 

the educational impact statement, and among the 25 
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facts and figures and numbers and the one 1 

grade that I did not see was an F; an F for the 2 

Department of Education.  And that should be 3 

right there on the first page. 4 

[Applause] And the reason I say that is 5 

because it's pretty clear that one individual, 6 

and that was the former principal, really was 7 

not a leader.  And that individual was allowed 8 

to basically run this school into the ground. 9 

Now, it's easy to blame one individual, but 10 

behind that one principal, there is a gigantic 11 

bureaucracy that's supposed to be overseeing 12 

that individual.  And it really speaks to how 13 

the bureaucracy is failing; how the bureaucracy 14 

is installing individuals who are not really fit 15 

to be leaders.   16 

And this environment impact statement, it 17 

reads like a comedy.  If you look on Page 4, it 18 

says leadership support, and it sites what type 19 

of leadership support was provided to the 20 

principal of - - .  Coaching the principal in 21 

the use of classroom observations and feedback 22 

to enhance teacher effectiveness.  What type of 23 

principal is allowed to be hired that needs 24 

coaching on basic structural norms?  That is 25 
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completely ridiculous. 1 

Now, we're all clear here that this was 2 

either allowed to go on due to extreme 3 

negligence or on purpose. 4 

[Crosstalk] So what's the lesson that's 5 

being given to the children here?  [Crosstalk] 6 

Exactly, the DOE is failing them.   7 

[Crosstalk] 8 

And people are not being treated like human 9 

beings.  They're being treated like chess pieces 10 

on the board. 11 

[Crosstalk] 12 

So - - what's going on here, and it's 13 

really, really sad and tragic.  But you know 14 

what?  I'm going to just conclude on a very 15 

hopeful note.  Hopefully, one day the children 16 

here will get the education that they deserve so 17 

that one day, they can sit up on that table and 18 

make the right decisions for their students.  19 

Thank you. 20 

[Applause] 21 

FEMALE VOICE:  Thank you.   22 

[Crosstalk] 23 

MS. HARRIS:  We have now concluded the 24 

public comment portion of this evening's agenda.  25 
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We will now begin the Q&A period.  Remember, - 1 

- questions and others that have been - - into 2 

categories.  Any question that is not answered 3 

here tonight will be answered on the web site.  4 

If you have additional questions on the 5 

conclusion of tonight's meeting, we ask that you 6 

direct them to us via the telephone number or 7 

email address found on the fact sheet. 8 

MR. STERBERG:  Thank you, Melissa.  - - have 9 

an opportunity to answer some of the questions 10 

that were submitted here.  There were a few, and 11 

I'm going to - - here - - .  I first want to 12 

repeat a few things that I said up front, that 13 

first of all, I think that everyone up here has 14 

heard a lot of - - .  And I want to assure you 15 

that you have been heard.  Again, tonight is not 16 

a decision point.  I can assure you that we have 17 

information and - - to take back to the 18 

Chancellor and then to the decision-making 19 

process over the next few weeks in advance of 20 

the March 11th panel vote.  And you've given us 21 

a lot to think about. 22 

And, as expected, we've all heard real and 23 

sincere enthusiasm for this school.  We've heard 24 

from students; we've heard from parents of the 25 
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students who no longer are here which is of 1 

particular meaning to all of us.  We've heard 2 

from teachers.  We've heard from advocates.  I - 3 

- coming in to this evening, heard many good 4 

things about your new principal - - and I think 5 

that all of those things are true and then some.  6 

And so, I, again, just want to acknowledge your 7 

hard work here and the many voices of support 8 

for - - so - - . 9 

[Applause] 10 

And I - - the other, not just the principal.  11 

- - a lot about - - I know she's here this 12 

evening - - but there are clearly many very 13 

committed individuals in this building.  And we 14 

- - celebrate that and - - families, parents, 15 

and students who - - the changes here and who 16 

have felt well served here.  We - - celebrate 17 

that.   18 

One of the questions this evening was about 19 

-- echoed some of the thoughts we heard and the 20 

questions about why we wouldn't give Ms. - - 21 

more time - - she has been here less than the 22 

school year.  And that's a very fair point to 23 

make, and it is - - that - - move from today 24 

toward a final decision here.  - - expect to 25 
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talk to you about that as we move forward. 1 

The answer that I would submit, not having 2 

done that, in advance of the additional 3 

conversation tonight, I know we have this - - is 4 

that when we arrive at a decision like this, it 5 

is never about - - and I refer, again, from 6 

prominent - - teachers and - - who are - - who 7 

have been here for a long time who are - - this 8 

community.  And so when we see a school that's 9 

struggling, it is not personal.  It's not about 10 

any one person - - a teacher and a principal - - 11 

a principal in a building where there was a 12 

failing school that is now - - I was deeply 13 

moved by the commitment of so many adults who 14 

work in that school and give everything they 15 

have, their entire lives to that school.   16 

And, in fact, - - and saw them - - .  This 17 

is not about -- arriving at a decision like this 18 

is not about any one individual.  And by the 19 

same token, we need to - - down and study this 20 

question in the coming weeks, but there are 21 

times when we have to ask ourselves if one 22 

person or even a small group of people can make 23 

the kind of impact we want to make for our 24 

students. 25 
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[Crosstalk] 1 

And I've heard your voices.  I understand.  2 

I understand that the folks in this room feel 3 

that that is the case in this building, and that 4 

is a question we are going to approach over the 5 

coming weeks as we continue - - . 6 

There was a question about enrollment in the 7 

school.  And the suggestion was that the school 8 

has been capped.  Again, this is going to be 9 

something that I want to go back and talk to our 10 

planners.  We have -- and I've asked this 11 

question by email over the course of the evening 12 

when the question was submitted and as I heard 13 

it.  It was about the enrollment of the school, 14 

whether there was essentially a forced decline, 15 

a capping of the school.  And we have no record 16 

of it being capped.  That question-- 17 

MALE VOICE:  [Interposing] Excuse me? 18 

MR. STERBERG:  That question is something 19 

that we want to explore, and there has been the 20 

suggestion that there have been caps.  We have 21 

no record of that.  What we do know is that M.S. 22 

45 participates in a district-wide choice 23 

process, and that families are empowered across 24 

the district to make choices to exercise their 25 
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voice in a process where the child will attend 1 

- - middle school.  And what we know is that 2 

just this year, and we've looked only - - 10 3 

students ranked the school first, that the 4 

school has, for reasons that I think are 5 

reflected in some of the comments this evening, 6 

has not performed well in that choice process, 7 

has not been a school of great demand.  And in a 8 

choice process, what we have seen is that 9 

parents have opted to go to other schools.  That 10 

is what our data reflects, so we have to - - 11 

this evening - - question. 12 

There were some questions about the 13 

enrollment of the school over time and the fact 14 

that the school has been asked to serve a 15 

population that has a higher population of 16 

students with special needs, i.e. - - and ELS.  17 

And we acknowledge that.  That is clear to us in 18 

the enrollment data of the school, but earlier I 19 

spoke about the job we have to confront the 20 

performance trends at the school.  And when we 21 

do that, we are comparing the school to its peer 22 

group, to 39 other schools across the city that 23 

serve, in some cases, a higher concentration of 24 

students with - - needs.  In some cases, a 25 
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higher concentration of students - - .  And 1 

what we see, not in a apples to oranges 2 

comparison, not comparing this school to any 3 

other school, to a screen [phonetic] school, 4 

right, to another - - school, but to 39 other 5 

schools across the five boroughs that serve this 6 

most similar student make up is that they're - -7 

 .  And that the school, compared to those 39 8 

schools, is struggling.  And that is what has 9 

brought us to this proposal and to this room, 10 

and what I want to assure you, in closing, is 11 

that as we proceed from today into the coming 12 

weeks, we will continue to push on some of the 13 

hypotheses that we have developed and some of 14 

the thoughts we have.  And we will explore these 15 

performance trends.  We will explore some of the 16 

considerations that have been asked this evening 17 

about leadership here at the school and - - 18 

questions about enrollment and - - just wanted 19 

to continue the conversation - - . 20 

So - - questions this evening.  Thank you 21 

very much. 22 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.  We have heard - - 23 

comments during this evening, and the 24 

information that you have provided to us or you 25 
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shared with the panel for education policy. 1 

FEMALE VOICE:  Did you say you were going to 2 

- - questions - - what happened to the one about 3 

the principal - - ? 4 

[Crosstalk] 5 

MR. STERBERG:  Those are good questions.  6 

I'm happy to talk more-- 7 

FEMALE VOICE:  [Interposing] About what 8 

question?  About - - . 9 

MALE VOICE:  [Interposing] - - . 10 

[Crosstalk] 11 

MS. HARRIS:  As I said at the starting of 12 

the hearing, actually, I repeated it about four 13 

times, that for the question and answer period, 14 

that you could write your questions down on 15 

index cards and provide them to the staff and we 16 

would answer those questions here. 17 

MALE VOICE:  But here's the thing, these 18 

people want to hear - - everybody else's point 19 

of view.  This community, they share their day-20 

to-day lives.  Their kids play together.  Their 21 

kids grow up together.  They don't-- 22 

MS. HARRIS:  [Interposing] Sir, and we 23 

understand and-- 24 

FEMALE VOICE:  [Interposing] - - . 25 
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MS. HARRIS:  [Interposing] Excuse me.  I 1 

need to respond - - . 2 

MALE VOICE:  [Interposing] - - . 3 

MS. HARRIS:  - - is happy to stay and answer 4 

additional questions here.  But, again, 5 

questions that were submitted, he did provide-- 6 

FEMALE VOICE:  [Interposing] - - there was 7 

only one question he - - . 8 

[Crosstalk] 9 

FEMALE VOICE:  - - only one question that he 10 

got - - . 11 

[Crosstalk] 12 

MALE VOICE:  Let me say something.  Like I 13 

said, - - so I came here tonight-- 14 

MS. HARRIS:  [Interposing] And sir, and we 15 

understand that.  And again, the Deputy 16 

Chancellor has said that he's willing to stay 17 

and answer additional questions if necessary. 18 

MALE VOICE:  All right. 19 

FEMALE VOICE:  [Interposing] I've got a 20 

question - - . 21 

MS. HARRIS:  [Interposing] So I just want to 22 

just conclude by saying that we are sharing 23 

feedback that we receive this evening with the 24 

panel for our education policy, which will have 25 
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its meeting on March 11th at the Brooklyn 1 

Technical High School to vote on this proposal. 2 

- - the public comment can still be 3 

submitted via email or at the telephone number 4 

which I - - to you at the beginning as well as 5 

it's on the fact sheets that were provided to 6 

you and are still available outside of the 7 

auditorium. 8 

You can submit public comment on this 9 

proposal until March 10th at 12:00 A.M.  We 10 

thank you for coming, and this joint public 11 

hearing is officially adjourned.   12 

[END RECORDING] 13 
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